MASTER CONTRACT



LITCHFIELD COMMUNITY SCHOOLS

AND

LITCHFIELD EDUCATION ASSOCIATION, MEA/NEA

September 1, 2024 - August 31, 2027

TABLE OF CONTENTS

WITNESSETH .		. 2
ARTICLE 1	RECOGNITION	. 2-3
ARTICLE 2	BOARD RIGHTS	. 3-4
ARTICLE 3	TEACHER RIGHTS	. 5-7
ARTICLE 4	TEACHING HOURS & CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT	. 7-11
ARTICLE 5	LEAVE PROVISIONS	. 11- 14
ARTICLE 6	VACANCIES, TRANSFERS, PROMOTIONS	. 14-15
ARTICLE 7	STUDENT DISCPLINE AND TEACHER PROTECTION	. 15-16
ARTICLE 8	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	. 16-19
ARTICLE 9	MENTOR TEACHERS	. 19-20
ARTICLE 10	REDUCTION IN PERSONNEL.	. 20
ARTICLE 11	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	. 20-21
ARTICLE 12	PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION	. 21-22
ARTICLE 13	INSURANCE	. 22-23
ARTICLE 14	SCHOOL REFORM/SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT	. 23-24
ARTICLE 15	ANNEXATION, CONSOLIDATION OR REORGANIZATION	24
ARTICLE 16	COMPLAINTS	. 24-25
ARTICLE 17	DISCIPLINE, DISCHARGE, AND DEMOTION	. 26
ARTICLE 18	DURATION OF AGREEMENT	27
SCHEDULE A	SALARY SCHEDULE(S)	. 29-32
SCHEDULE B	Appendix B Extra Duty Assignments	. 33-37
APPENDIX C	GRIEVANCE REPORT FORM	. 38-40
APPENDIX D	TEACHER EVALUATION, PLACEMENT, LEAVE/LAYOFF,	
	TEACHER OF RECORD	41-46

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS the Board and the Association recognize and declare that providing a quality education for the children of the Litchfield Community Schools is their mutual aim, and

WHEREAS the Board has a statutory obligation, pursuant to Act 379 of the Michigan Public Act of 1965, the Michigan Public Employment Relations Act, as amended (PERA) to bargain with respect to hours, wages, and terms and conditions of employment affecting the teaching personnel that are represented by the Association, and

WHEREAS the parties, following extended and deliberate negotiations, have reached certain understandings which they desire to memorialize.

In consideration of the following mutual covenants, it is hereby agreed as follows:

This Agreement is entered into this, 1st day of September 2024, by and between the Board of Education of the Litchfield Community Schools, Litchfield, Michigan, hereinafter called the "Board," and the Litchfield Education Association, MEA/NEA, hereinafter called the "Association".

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION

A. The Board hereby recognizes the Association as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative for all persons holding positions which comprise the bargaining unit as hereinafter defined.

The bargaining unit is defined to be comprised of those persons employed by the Board both tenured and on probation who hold positions for which they must be certified by the State Board of Education which include, classroom teachers, lead teachers, student support director, librarians, guidance counselors, and other teaching positions which require the performance of the same or similar functions. The bargaining unit is further defined not to be comprised of and hereby specifically excludes those persons holding the positions of superintendent, principals, assistant principals, per diem substitute teachers, evening and summer school teachers, and all other positions which require the performance of the same or similar administrative, supervisory functions.

The term "teacher" or "employee" when used hereinafter in this Agreement shall refer to all members of the bargaining unit as defined above, represented by the Association and employed by the Board.

B. The Board agrees not to negotiate with any teachers' organization other than the Association for the duration of this Agreement while the Association is the recognized bargaining representative for professional personnel in the bargaining unit described above. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to prevent any individual teacher from presenting a grievance and having the grievance adjusted without intervention of the Association, provided that the adjustment is consistent with the terms of this Agreement, and that the Association has been given opportunity to be present at such adjustment.

ARTICLE 2 BOARD RIGHTS

- A. The Board, on its own behalf and on behalf of the electors of the district, hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws and the Constitution of the State of Michigan, and of the United States, including, and without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the right:
 - 1. To the executive management and administrative control of the school system and its properties and facilities, and the activities of its employees;
 - 2. To hire all employees and subject to the provisions of law, to determine their qualifications and the conditions for their continued employment, or their dismissal or demotion; and to promote, and transfer all such employees;
 - 3. To established grades and courses of instruction, including special programs, and to provide for athletic, recreational and social events for students, all as deemed necessary or advisable by the Board;
 - 4. To decide upon the means and methods of instruction, the selection of textbooks and other teaching materials, and the use of teaching aids of every kind and nature;
 - 5. To determine class schedules, the hours of instruction, and the duties, responsibilities, and assignments of teachers and other employees with respect to administrative and non-teaching activities, and the terms and conditions of employment.
 - 6. To extend the school calendar after its scheduled ending date in the event an emergency or weather conditions require the closing of

school on regularly scheduled days. All teachers will report and work during these make-up days as part of their regular assignment and annual salary. It is understood that the intent of this provision is to assure that the school district incurs no loss of state aid by virtue of the requirement that canceled days of instruction cannot be counted as day of student instruction for purposes of receipt of state aid.

- 7. To determine the services, supplies, and equipment necessary to continue its operations and to determine all methods and means of distributing, disseminating, and/or selling its services, methods, processes of carrying on the work including automation or contracting thereof or changes therein, the institution of new and/or improved methods or changes therein.
- 8. To determine the number and location or relocation of its facilities, including the establishment or relocations of new schools, buildings, departments, divisions or subdivisions thereof and the relocation or closing of offices, departments, divisions or subdivisions, buildings or other facilities.
- 9. To adopt rules and regulations for the operation and management of the schools and the school management of the school and the school district.
- 10. Determine reasonable provisions for health, safety, and first aid of employees during hours of employment.
- 11. Nothing in this Agreement in any way shall prevent or limit the Board from participating in cooperative educational programs with any entity.
- B. The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities by the Board, the adoption of policies, rules and regulations and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement and then only to the extent specific and express terms hereof are in conformance with the Constitution and laws of both the State of Michigan and the United States.

ARTICLE 3 TEACHER RIGHTS

- Pursuant to The Michigan Public Employee Relations Act, as amended, A. PERA, the Board hereby agrees that every employee of the Board shall have the rights freely to organize, join and support the Association for the purpose of engaging in collective bargaining or negotiation and other concerted activities for mutual aid and protection. As a duly elected body exercising governmental power under color of law of the State of Michigan, the Board undertakes and agrees that it will not directly or indirectly discourage or deprive or coerce any teacher in the enjoyment of any rights conferred by PERA, as amended or other laws of Michigan and the United States; that it will not discriminate against any teacher with respect to hours, wages or any terms or conditions of employment by reason of this membership in the Association, his/her participation in any activities of the Association or collective professional negotiations with the Board, or his/her institution of any grievance, complaint or proceeding under this Agreement or otherwise with respect to any terms or conditions of employment.
- B. The Board specifically recognizes the right of its employees appropriately to invoke the assistance of the Michigan Employment Relations Commission, or a Mediator from such public agency as provided in PERA, as amended.
 - Teachers may use school building facilities before or after regular class hours and during lunch time for Association meetings provided they receive prior approval of the Board. The Board hereby designates as its representative for such purpose, the Superintendent of Schools. The Association shall have the right to use school building facilities and equipment for the purpose of conducting Association business. The Association agrees to abide by the rules and regulations established by the Board for use of school building facilities and equipment. Such equipment shall be audio, visual, electronic, etc. which is normally available for teacher use.
- C. The Association will reimburse the Board in full for any costs or charges incurred through such use. No teacher shall be prevented from wearing insignia, pins, or other identification of membership in the Association either on or off school premises. Bulletin board and access to teachers' mailboxes shall be made available to the Association. Posting of materials for political candidates shall not be allowed. All materials posted, or placed in mailboxes, must relate to official business of the Association and be signed by a designated Association official. The Association shall not use the facilities mentioned above to

instigate any strike, slowdown or work stoppage.

The Board agrees to follow the Public Employees Relations Act of 1947, as amended in 2023. With regards to requests for Bargaining Unit members information from the Association.

- D. Teachers are expected to comply with published rules, regulations, and policies adopted by the board or its representatives which are not inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement. A copy of such rules, regulations, and policies shall be made available to teachers at each Building Principal's office. It is understood that a teacher may refuse to carry out an order which poses imminent threat to physical well-being or safety.
- E. A teacher shall be entitled to have present representation of the Association when the teacher is being interviewed, formally reprimanded, reduced in compensation or disciplined for any infraction of rules or delinquency of classroom performance and duties under this contract. When a teacher who is being formally reprimanded or disciplined, refuses or does not want representation, the teacher shall sign a waiver of such representation. The administrator shall immediately notify an association representative(s) of such waiver. When request is made for such representation and no representative is available within three (3) days, administrative action may be taken and written record of the proceedings shall be furnished to the teacher and the Association.
- F. Any such discipline, reprimand or reduction in compensation, by the Board or representative thereof, shall be done in private. All information forming the basis for disciplinary action will be made available to the teacher.
- G. Each teacher shall have the right, upon written request, to review the contents of their own personnel file maintained by the school system. The review will be made in the presence of the administrator responsible for the safe keeping of the file. A representative of the Association may, at the teacher's request, accompany the teacher in this review. Privileged information such as confidential credentials, letters of recommendation from universities, previous employers or individuals are specifically exempted from such review. The administrator shall remove such privileged information from the file prior to the review of the file by the teacher. No material other than privileged information may be placed in the file without allowing the teacher an opportunity to file a response thereto and said response shall become a part of said file.

- H. After initial employment, any material initiated from a source other than the teacher shall not be placed in a teacher's file until notice of an opportunity to review the material has been sent to the teacher. The teacher may attach a written notation to any such material or request said material not be placed in the teacher's file. A teacher may request after review of his/her personnel file that certain material be removed from the file. Based on law, and Superintendent's approval, material may be removed from the file.
- I. The nature and responsibility of a teacher's assignment requires a certain portion of preparatory work to be performed at home. Space and furniture necessary for such homework and their upkeep are the responsibility of the teacher whose assignment requires such equipment and/or space. The Board shall not be obligated by any costs incurred pursuant to this subsection.
- J. One copy of the seniority list will be provided to the Association. Any teacher, who leaves the bargaining unit, will have as his/her seniority date, the date that he/she returns to the bargaining unit. Any teacher who leaves the bargaining unit and moves to the Administration shall have their seniority capped. A teacher who returns to the unit from an Administrative position shall have their original hiring date altered to represent only the year of teaching service within the District.

 (SEE APPENDIX D TEACHER EVALUATION, PLACEMENT, LEAVE/LAYOFF, TEACHER OF RECORD)

ARTICLE 4 TEACHING HOURS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

- A. It is the responsibility of each individual teacher, as well as the Board, to provide the highest quality educational program practical for every boy and girl in the school district. This includes:
 - Careful daily preparation.
 - Attendance at staff meetings.
- B. The teachers' normal teaching hours shall be as follows:
 - Unless conditions warrant less than full day sessions, the normal daily class schedule shall not begin before 7:30 a.m. nor end later than 3:30 p.m.
- C. The length of the teacher's day in school shall not exceed seven (7) hours and thirty-five (35) minutes.

- D. All teachers shall be entitled to a duty-free uninterrupted lunch period of not less than thirty (30) minutes.
- E. Elementary teachers (K-5) may use for preparation and conference time all time during which their classes are receiving instruction from various teaching specialists, provided that the teacher shall render assistance to the teaching specialist on special occasions upon request of the teaching specialist. This provision shall be void on any day on which the regularly scheduled period is lost because of schedule change for semester examination, field trips, parent conferences and holidays. Where reasonably possible the elementary schedule will be arranged so that elementary preparation time will be contiguous blocks. The final scheduling decision however shall remain with the Principal. The five (5) weekly elementary preparation and conference time shall average not less than forty-five (45) minutes per day.
- F. Elementary teachers (K-5) will be provided one (1) fifteen (15) minute relief period each day.

All teachers shall be required to report fifteen (15) minutes before the start of classes and shall remain five (5) minutes after school ends, except they may leave with students on the last school day of each week.

The weekly instructional time of all teachers will not exceed twenty-eight hours and forty-five minutes (28 ¾) of pupil contact time per week.

- G. Each secondary teacher (grades 6-12) shall have one (1) conference period within the student day of not less than forty-nine (49) minutes per day. This provision becomes void on any day in which the regularly scheduled period is lost because of schedule change for semester examinations, field trip, parent conference or other similar activity approved by the Principal which necessitates the foregoing of the conference period by the teacher.
- H. The school calendar for staff shall consist of the number of student instructional days and hours required for full State Aid payment.

The staff days shall include:

• Five (5) Professional development days up to thirty (30) hours towards instruction.

- Fall conferences, One (1) day, five (5) hours.
- Spring conferences three (3) hours.
- Open house one (1) hour.
- I. Teachers, regardless of FTE, shall attend no more than two building staff meetings per month. During the month of December teachers shall only be required to attend one staff meeting if such is held. Forty-eight (48) hours notice will be given for any staff meeting and staff meetings shall conclude within one hour and fifteen minutes of the dismissal of classes.
- J. In elementary school the students will be dismissed at the cafeteria by the teacher or other staff member charged with their supervision. The remainder of the students' lunch period shall be a duty-free lunch period for Elementary Teachers.
- K. Elementary teachers will not be assigned playground duty.
- L. Each teacher shall be required to give an explanation for damaged equipment and/or facilities assigned to him/her.
 - 1. The District agrees that appropriate staff member use of the school provided technology outside of school hours, off school premises and outside the presence of students shall not form the basis for disciplinary action.
 - 2. The District agrees that staff members are not responsible after the termination of warranty for repairs, maintenance, or replacement of equipment unless such expense is the direct result of gross negligence on the part of the staff member. Any replacement costs deemed chargeable to the staff member under this provision shall be calculated on the present value of the equipment not the original cost.
- M. Each teacher will be provided with a lesson plan book, up to \$15. Such plan book must be available.
- N. There shall be equalization of teacher class size when feasible within the approximate individual grade levels. In the event that an Elementary teacher's class exceeds 28 students, an administrator, Association representative and the involved teacher will meet in an attempt to arrive at a mutually agreeable solution to address the issue of class size. The

committee shall attempt to resolve the issue within a reasonable time after the teacher has requested a review of the matter.

In the event that a High School teacher's class exceeds twenty eight (28)students, that teacher will be paid 1.25% of each students' FTE over (28) students per semester. This will be paid to the teacher the last pay of each semester.

- O. When split grade or multiage classes are utilized, the split grade class or multiage size shall be limited to 3 less than the average number of the component grades which make up the split/multiage. These numbers will be determined before school starts. Students will not be removed from classes solely for the purpose of meeting class size limits after the school year begins. The composition of such classes shall be based on academic achievement and previous teacher input.
- P. The Board shall have the right to determine the number of class periods to be held in grades 6-12. The normal teaching load shall be one instructional class period less than the number scheduled in the school day.
- Q. No teacher shall leave their classroom unattended unless authorized by the Superintendent or his/her representative unless an emergency arises.
- R. If an individual is hired or already employed as a long-term substitute in the district, during their student teaching semester, that individual will be granted one (1) year of experience on the salary schedule, if hired for a permanent teaching position.
- S. New staff, by mutual agreement of the Board and the Association, may be given up to their maximum number of years of experience earned in their previous districts.
- T. A teacher who is laid off, effective the last duty day or later of one school year, and collects unemployment benefits for any period of time between last day of school one school year and the first teacher work day of the next school year and is subsequently recalled to at least an equal position before the first teacher work day of the next school year will be paid according to an annual salary rate, such that collected unemployment compensation benefits and salary equal the amount on the salary schedule.
- U. For all teachers who have achieved tenure and have successfully completed course work, via an accredited university, beyond six (6) semester hours, the District will reimburse the teacher one thousand

dollars (\$1000) per year for all course work in excess of six (6) semester hours which are directly related to the teacher's assignment or a part of an advanced degree program with a passing grade as established by the accredited university/college granting credit.

- V. When school is officially called off, delayed, or canceled, teachers will not have to report unless mutually agreed upon by the district and LEA.
- W. Clothing and shoes must be neat, clean, and in good repair and appropriate for on-the-job appearances at all times, including jeans and dress shorts.

ARTICLE 5 LEAVE PROVISIONS

- A. Staff members shall be allowed the following leave provisions:
 - 1. At the beginning of each school year, each teacher shall be credited with fifteen (15) days of leave. Leave days may be taken by a teacher for any reasons and subject to the following conditions and the Family and Medical Leave Act. Leave days need to be approved. More than 5 consecutive days must be approved one week in advance.
 - 2. At the end of each school year any unused portion of leave will accumulate on an unlimited basis for all teachers hired before the 2003-2004 school year. Teachers hired after the 2003-2004 school year will have their accumulated leave capped when they reach 180 days.
 - 3. A teacher shall be paid sixty (\$60) dollars per day for all accumulated leave upon retirement from the District so long as the teacher provides the Board written notice 30 days in advance.
 - 4. At the beginning of each school year, returning teachers shall be informed by written notice of their accumulated leave. In the event a teacher does not complete a school year, the amount of days credited for that year will be prorated for the number of days worked.
 - 5. If a teacher uses five (5) or fewer leave days during a school year he/she shall be allowed to use up to five (5) consecutive leave days that may be used for any reason during the subsequent school year, except under the following conditions.
 - a. Notice of leave must be given at least thirty (30)

calendar days prior to the date of leave;

- b. No more than two (2) teachers may use this provision during the same dates; and
- c. This provision shall not be used the first two weeks of the first semester for students, the last two weeks of the first semester, the first week of the second semester, the week prior to seniors' second semester exams through the end of the year, parent teacher conference days, professional development days, and days when state assessment tests are given.

B. <u>Miscellaneous provisions regarding absence:</u>

- 1. The Board of Education reserves the right to require a physician's statement or other evidence of illness.
- 2. Any regular employee of the school system who in the line of duty incurs an injury for which the employee received compensation under the Worker's Compensation Act, shall at the employee's option, be paid during the period of disability, up to ninety (90) days, the difference between the employee's salary and the amount received under Worker's Compensation. This amount shall be deducted on a pro-rated basis from the teacher's accumulated sick leave. This provision is valid only if permissible by law and only if the effect of this provision does not reduce benefits payable to employees by the Worker's Compensation carrier.
- 3. Upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the District may require a teacher to submit to a physical or mental examination by appropriate specialist to determine whether involuntary sick leave is warranted. Such requested examinations will be at the District's expense.
- C. Five (5) days shall be granted for the death of a family member and two (2) additional days shall be granted should the death require travel of three hundred (300) miles or more. These days shall not be charged to the member's leave day(s) account. Additional days granted are at the sole discretion of the Superintendent and shall be charged to the member's personal leave. In case of other deaths, leave may be granted by the Superintendent upon request and at his/her discretion. Family shall be defined—as: parent, (including step, adoptive, etc.), spouse, significant other, sibling (including step, adopted, etc.), in-law,

- grandparent, child (including step, adoptive, ward, guardian, etc.).
- D. A leave of absence will be granted a teacher called for jury duty, or who is subpoenaed to testify in any legal proceedings connected with the teacher's employment or with the school system. The teacher will receive his/her regular salary less the fee paid by the courts for each day on which he/she otherwise would have been scheduled to work at school. Such leave shall not be deducted from leave or business days.
- E. At the beginning of each school year, the Association shall be credited with up to ten (10) days to be used by teachers who are officers or agents of the Association; such days are to be used at the discretion of the Association. The Association agrees to notify the Superintendent no less than forty- eight (48) hours in advance of taking such leave.
- F. All leave used following the provisions in Section A, B, C D and E, shall be paid leave based on the individual teacher's salary and no loss of pay shall result from the use of such leave.

G. <u>UNPAID LEAVES</u>

- 1. The Board shall grant to any teacher an unpaid leave of absence for a period not to exceed one (1) year, renewable at the discretion of the Board, for the purpose of child care of an infant or seriously ill older child. Teachers requesting child care leave shall notify the Board not less than thirty (30) days prior to the commencement of such leave except in the case of unexpected serious illness of a child. The starting and ending time of the leave will conform as nearly as possible to the start of a marking period but may be relaxed at the discretion of the Superintendent. (A teacher returning from such leave in the fall shall notify the Board of intent to return from leave not later than April 15 of the preceding year.)
- 2. The Board shall grant to any teacher an unpaid leave of absence for a period not to exceed one (1) year renewable at the discretion of the Board, for personal illness or disability upon exhaustion of all available leave days. The ending time for the leave will conform as nearly as possible to the start of a marking period but may be relaxed at the discretion of the Superintendent. (A teacher returning from such leave in the fall shall notify the Board of intent to return from leave no later than April 15 of the preceding year.) The District may require the teacher to provide a medical statement from the attending physician that the teacher is able to perform the essential functions of his/her position, with or

without reasonable accommodation.

- 3. The Board, at its discretion, may grant teachers unpaid leaves of absence for periods not to exceed one (1) year. In order for an unpaid leave of absence request to be considered by the Board, the teacher shall apply in writing to the Superintendent. In order to receive timely consideration of such requests, teachers interested in making such requests are urged to apply at least three (3) months before the anticipated starting date of their leaves.
- 4. The teacher may continue health insurance coverage at the teacher's own expense. Any tenure teacher teaching at least one-half (1/2) of a semester before taking the leave shall be granted credit for a full semester's experience on the salary schedule. Seniority rights shall not be interrupted by the leave and the teacher shall retain accumulated sick leave time.

ARTICLE 6 VACANCIES, TRANSFERS, PROMOTIONS

- A. Vacancies occurring during the summer months, when school is not in session, shall be posted in the Superintendent's office and notice shall be sent to the e-mail address provided by each teacher. Teachers having expressed an interest in a position as provided in this Article shall be notified by e-mail to an e-mail address specified by the teacher and through the automated alert system. Teachers shall have five (5) days to respond.
- B. The following procedure shall be followed when filling vacancies in the bargaining unit, during the school year. A position shall not be considered vacant if the teacher has the right to return to that position.
 - 1. Vacancies shall be e-mailed to teachers' school email addresses and posted through the automated alert system.
 - 2. Teachers interested in the vacancy shall notify the Superintendent within the posting period. The teachers who have expressed an interest in the position shall be contacted by the Superintendent's office via e-mail, text or phone call.
 - 3. Vacancies occurring during the school year may be filled on temporary basis until the end of the current year. Then re-posted.
 - 4. Vacancies occurring after April 1st, may be filled by a substitute

until the end of the school year.

C. Teachers shall be given written notice of their tentative assignment for the next school year by June 30. The Board retains the right of room assignment. Teachers shall be given written notice of their tentative assigned classroom no later than two weeks before the beginning of the school year. The parties recognize that changes in grade assignments in the elementary school and changes in subject assignments in the secondary school grades may be necessary.

ARTICLE 7 STUDENT DISCIPLINE AND TEACHER PROTECTION

- A. The Board recognizes its responsibility to give administrative support and assistance to teachers with respect to control and discipline, although each teacher bears the primary responsibility for maintaining proper control and discipline in the teacher's classroom. The teachers recognize that all disciplinary actions and methods invoked by them shall be in accordance with published Board policy and Michigan Revised School Code. Language in the Master Agreement, if permitted by law, shall supersede language in the Board Policy should a conflict arise between the two.
- B. Whenever it appears that a particular pupil requires the attention of special counselors, social workers, law enforcement personnel, physicians or other professional persons, it shall be the responsibility of the teacher to report this fact to the teacher's principal. The administration will take reasonable and lawful steps to assist the teacher with respect to such pupil. The teacher shall, upon request, be advised by the principal of the disposition of the teacher's report.
- C. Teachers will immediately report to their principal in writing all cases of assault allegedly suffered by them in connection with their employment. The Board shall comply with any reasonable request from the teacher for information in its possession relating to the incident or the persons involved, and will act in appropriate ways as liaison between the teacher, the police, and the courts.
- D. The Board will reimburse teachers who, without fault on their part suffer any loss, damage, or destruction to personal property, valued at over twenty-five dollars (\$25), while in the performance of their duties and as a result of the performance of their duties, so long as the teacher was performing their duties within the scope of Board policy and the activity was not occasioned by the misconduct or negligence of the teacher. Reimbursement shall be limited to the difference in cost between the actual replacement costs and any insurance coverage and/or amounts

actually and legally recovered from the person involved. If a teacher is required to use personal insurance to implement this paragraph it is understood that the Board will pay any deductible in the teacher's insurance in order to make the teacher whole from such loss, damage, or destruction. Reimbursement for each occurrence shall not exceed five hundred dollars (\$500).

- E. When information concerning a pupil's disability is made known to the school, the pupil's teachers will be informed as soon as practical. In all cases such information shall be considered confidential.
- F. Each teacher will be furnished with appropriate and available information at the beginning of each school year concerning the pupil's medication supervision procedure for schools and/or any allergies a student may have.
- G. No bargaining unit member shall be required to provide school health services unless identified in an IEP or 504.
- H. No bargaining unit member shall be required to provide services where to do so would cause the member to touch or view the genital area of a student unless identified in an IEP or 504 and would require the presence of another adult.
- I. Regular classroom teachers shall not be expected to perform routing, scheduled maintenance of a medical appliance or apparatus used by a medically fragile student or sustain his/her bodily function or to render routine scheduled care of maintenance of exceptional bodily functions related to such a student's impaired condition, except in emergency situations. The teacher shall be informed and instructed as to emergency measures, which may be necessary on occasion due to such a student' impaired condition. Otherwise, it is the responsibility of the teacher to implement the students IEP or Section 504 plan while attending school to the educational needs of the student in the teacher's class.

ARTICLE 8 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A. The grievance procedure hereinafter described affords the sole and exclusive remedy for complaints and grievances under this Agreement Any claim or complaint for which there is another remedial procedure or forum established by law or by regulation having the force of law, shall not be the basis of any grievance pursued from the Board level to arbitration and is hereby excluded from arbitration.

- B. Any teacher, group of teachers, or the Association believing that there has been a violation, misinterpretation or misapplication of any provision of this Agreement may file a written grievance with the designated representative of the Board. The Board hereby designates as the representative for such propose the principal in each school building and the Superintendent of Schools when the particular grievance arises in more than one school building. If the teacher, group of teachers, or the Association does not file a grievance in writing with the principal or other designated Board representative within ten (10) school days after the occurrence, or within ten (10) school days after the date the grievant would reasonably have knowledge of the occurrence, then the grievance shall be considered untimely and no further grievance shall be filed whose basis is this occurrence.
- C. The written grievance must be specific. It must contain a statement of facts upon which the grievance is based, a reference to the specific articles and sections of the Agreement which have been allegedly misinterpreted or violated, and must state the relief requested. The grievance statement must name and be signed by the Association or employees involved and be submitted using the agreed upon form, a copy of which is attached to this Agreement as Appendix A.
- D. Within five (5) school days of receipt of the grievance, the building principal/designee shall meet with the Association, or its representative, in an effort to resolve the grievance. Affected teachers may be present at such meeting. The principal shall respond in writing within five (5) school days from the conclusion of the meeting to the Association or its representative. If the Association, or its representative, is not satisfied with the written response, or if no response is forthcoming within the five (5) school days, the Association, or its representative, may transmit the grievance, within five (5) school days, to the Superintendent. The Superintendent shall have five (5) school days from receipt of the grievance to meet with the affected parties and shall respond in writing to the Association or its representative within ten (10) school days from the meeting. If the Association, or its representative, is not satisfied with the written response, or if no response is forthcoming with the ten (10) school days, the Association or its representative may transmit the grievance, within ten (10) school days to the Secretary of the Board with copies of the written responses attached.
- E. Within fifteen (15) school days from receipt of the grievance the Board shall consider the grievance. The Board may hold a hearing thereon, may designate one or more of its members to hold a hearing or otherwise

investigate the grievance, or prescribe such procedure as it may deem appropriate for consideration of the grievance, provided, however, that in no event, except with express written consent of the Association, shall final determination of the grievance be made by the Board more than twenty (20) school days after the Board first considers the grievance.

- F. If the Association is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance by the Board, or if no disposition has been made within the period above provided, the grievance may be submitted within twenty (20) school days to arbitration before an impartial arbitrator. If the parties cannot agree as to the arbitrator within five (5) school days from the notification date that arbitration will be pursued, he shall be selected by the American Arbitration Association in accord with its rules which shall likewise govern the arbitration proceedings. The Board and the Association shall not be permitted to assert in such arbitration preceding any ground or to rely on any evidence not previously disclosed to the other party. The arbitrator shall have no power to alter, add to, or subtract from the terms of the Agreement. Both parties agree to be bound by the award of the arbitrator and agree that judgment thereon may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne by the losing party.
- G. It shall be the general practice of all interested parties to process grievance procedures during times which do not interfere with assigned duties; provided, however, in the event it is agreed by the Board to hold proceedings during regular working hours, a teacher participating in any level of the grievance procedure, with any representative of the Board, shall be released from assigned duties without loss of salary.
- H. If any teacher for whom a grievance is sustained shall be found to have been unjustly discharged, the teacher shall be reinstated with full reimbursement of all professional compensation lost. If the teacher shall have been found to have been improperly deprived of any professional compensation or advantage, the same or its equivalent in money shall be paid to the teacher.

I. <u>Guidelines:</u>

1. The time limits provided in the Article shall be strictly observed, but may be extended by written agreement of the parties. In the event a grievance is filed after May 15 of any year the parties shall use their best efforts to process such grievance prior to the end of the school term or as soon thereafter as possible.

- 2. Notwithstanding the expiration of the Agreement, any claim or grievance having arisen thereunder may be processed through the grievance procedure until resolution.
- 3. Any time limits not strictly adhered to by the grievant, except as provided in number 1 above, the last written response by the Board's representative will be considered accepted.
- 4. All parties of interest shall be present and may be represented by another person designated by the Association at all meetings and hearings at any level of the Grievance Procedure. In no event shall any teacher be represented by an officer, agent, or representative of any organization in conflict or competition to the Association.

J. Miscellaneous:

- 1. A grievance may be withdrawn at any level by mutual agreement without establishing a precedent.
- 2. No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by or against any party of interest or any participant in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.
- 3. All documents, communications, and records dealing with a grievance shall be filed separately from the personnel files of the participants.
- 4. All available information necessary to the determination and processing of any grievance shall be furnished upon request to all parties involved in said grievances with the exception of arguments to be presented by either side of arbitration.

ARTICLE 9 MENTOR TEACHER

- A. Each new teacher shall be assigned a master teacher who shall serve as his/her "mentor teacher" during the new teacher's first three (3) years in a classroom at Litchfield Community Schools. This assignment is subject to change upon request of the mentor, the new teacher, the Association, or the building administrator.
 - 1. The mentor teacher shall be available to provide professional support, instruction, and guidance. The purpose of the mentor assignment is to provide a peer who can offer assistance, resources, and information in a non-threatening collegial fashion. It is understood that the mentor-new teacher relationship is

- confidential and shall not be a matter included in the evaluation of either person.
- 2. As much as possible, the mentor will be selected by the Administration from a list of tenured teachers in the district who have indicated an interest in mentoring. Every effort will be made to match the new teacher with a mentor in the same building and with the same certification. The Association shall be promptly notified of all mentor assignments and any changes of such assignments.
- 3. Participation as a mentor shall be voluntary. In no instance will a Litchfield School Administrator serve as a teacher mentor. If there is an insufficient number of Litchfield Schools, tenured teacher volunteers, retired teachers or college professors may serve as a mentor teacher.
- 4. A mentor teacher shall be compensated five hundred dollars (\$500) each year for each new teacher mentored.

ARTICLE 10 REDUCTION IN PERSONNEL

A. One copy of the seniority list will be provided to the Association. Any teacher, who leaves the bargaining unit, will have as his/her seniority date, the date that he/she returns to the bargaining unit. Seniority in the bargaining unit shall not be accrued while working outside of the bargaining unit. Staff leaving the bargaining unit shall be allowed to return to the bargaining unit within a two-year period.

ARTICLE 11 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- A. The individual teacher's contract shall be made expressly subject to the terms of this Agreement.
- B. If any provision of this Agreement, or any application of the Agreement to any employee or group of employees, shall be found contrary to law, then such provision or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect.
- C. Language in the Master Agreement supersedes Board Language when there is a conflict in the language except to the extent permitted by the law, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect.

D. If an emergency manager is appointed under the local government and school district fiscal accountability act, 2011 PA 4, MCL 141.1501 to MCL 141.1531, then said emergency manager shall have the authority to reject, modify, or terminate this Collective Bargaining Agreement.

ARTICLE 12 PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION

- A. The salaries of teachers covered by this Agreement are set forth in Schedule A which is attached to and incorporated in the Agreement.
- B. The salary schedule is based upon a normal full time teaching load, on a nine-and-one-half month's (traditional, two-semester teaching year) basis as agreed upon in the calendar. For extra work the teacher shall be entitled to appropriate additional professional compensation, as set forth in Schedule B. Teachers working less than a full schedule shall have their salary and benefits prorated as follows:

The numerator of the proration factor shall be the number of teaching periods assigned and the denominator shall be one less than the number of periods scheduled for students. (Example: students are scheduled into a seven period day, and a teacher is assigned to teach five classes -- the teacher shall receive 5/6 of the salary at the appropriate step and lane, and 5/6 of the cost of the selected benefits package.)

- C. A teacher engaged during the school day in negotiating on behalf of the Association with any representative of the Board or participating in the formal grievance procedure of this Agreement shall be released from regular duties without loss of salary.
- D. Subject to the annuity provider's ability to gain provider status, at the request of an employee and as part of the compensation arrangement, the Board will purchase a tax-sheltered annuity contract, as provided under section 403b of the current Federal Internal Revenue Code, for the employee and make payroll allocations in accordance with such arrangement for the purpose of paying the entire premium due and to become due under the annuity contract. Acceptance of a provider is in no way to be construed as an endorsement of that provider by the Board. The Board shall have no liability thereunder because of its purchase of any such annuity contracts.
- E. Upon appropriate written authorization from an employee, the Board shall make regular deductions from the salary of the employee and remit said amount to the bank or credit union of the employee's choice. Such

- deductions shall be forwarded to the institution not later than the current pay day.
- F. Longevity benefits will be paid to the teacher who has completed step 12 and eleven (11) years of service to the district. The longevity dollar amounts are based upon Step 12 of the teacher's proper salary column.

The longevity dollars are applied to Step 12 of either the BA, BA+25, MA, MA+15, or MA+30 salary step.

ARTICLE 13 INSURANCE

- A. You have the choice of any of the plans offered by MESSA.
- B. Effective upon ratification, and upon each adjustment by the State, the District shall contribute the statutory maximum amount under state law towards medical insurance premiums for teachers electing PAK A and the District shall contribute one hundred percent (100%) towards all other PAK A premiums (i.e. dental, vision, LTD, life and AD&D).
- C. Teachers enrolled in PAK A will contribute all medical premiums beyond the District's statutory maximum contribution to be taken out of each paycheck in equal amounts. Those amounts shall be determined by the total employees' annual premium contribution and the carrier's rating factors (Single 1, Two Person 2.25 and Full Family 2.8) such that each employee pays an equitable amount based on their coverage level.
- D. The Association may, at its sole discretion, notify the District of a change in medical insurance coverage and/or carrier to take effect after December 31, 2021 The District shall make all such changes upon notification by the Association.
- E. Teachers electing PAK B (LTD, Life, Vision, Delta Dental) shall have 100% of the PAK B premiums paid by the district and shall receive cash in lieu of health insurance equal to three hundred (\$300) dollars per month.
- F. The Board shall provide a qualified 125 plan that permits a member's contribution towards premiums to be paid with pretax dollars through a Salary Reduction Agreement. All costs relating to the implementation and administration of benefits under the program shall be borne by the Board.
- G. Teachers who wish additional coverage may authorize deductions of the required additional funds from their salary through a Salary Reduction Agreement.

- H. The above benefits are subject to Rules and Regulations of the underwriter.
- I. All less than full time teachers shall have prorated fringe benefits.
- J. Teachers may designate amounts towards their HSA contributions with appropriate notification to the business office.

ARTICLE 14 SCHOOL REFORM/SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT

- A. A school improvement committee shall be established to serve in a coordinated and advisory capacity for needed changes and improvements in Litchfield Community Schools facilities, equipment, supplies, curriculum and MI SAFE SCHOOLS RETURN TO LEARN ROADMAP. The committee will operate under both Federal and State mandates.
 - 1. Copies of all building level School Improvement plans, reports, minutes and recommendations shall be provided to the Association through its representatives in the school improvement committee.
- B. There shall be a District wide review committee composed of the Superintendent, the Principal and the Association President(s). The purpose of the committee shall be to monitor and provide a review of all school improvement plans and activities in the District with respect to the involvement of teachers and the impact of such plans and activities on wages, hours and/or other terms and conditions of employment of bargaining unit members.
- C. In the event that any provisions of a school improvement committee activity or application there of violates, contradicts or is inconsistent with the collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining agreement shall prevail.
- D. If school improvement committee meetings or activities are scheduled by the Administration during the employee's regular workday, the employee shall be released from duties without loss of pay to attend the meetings.

- E. The conditions which follow shall govern employee participation in any and all Committee plans, programs or projects included in the term "School Improvement Committee".
 - 1. Participation by the employee is voluntary.
 - 2. Participation or non-participation shall not be used as criteria for evaluation, discipline or discharge.
 - F. The School Improvement Committee will not deal with personnel matters.

ARTICLE 15 ANNEXATION, CONSOLIDATION, OR REORGANIZATION

If annexation, consolidation or reorganization affecting the District is to take place during the term of this Agreement, the Board agrees to notify the Association in advance and, upon request of the Association, to negotiate with the Association over the effects of such change upon bargaining unit members impacting wages, hours, terms and conditions of employment.

ARTICLE 16 COMPLAINTS

- A. With respect to any complaint against a teacher by a parent, guardian, student, another school employee, or community citizen, the following procedures shall be followed:
 - 1. With the exception of a complaint dealing with violation of law, the complaining party shall be encouraged to first attempt to resolve the problem directly with the teacher involved.
 - 2. Then at the request of either or both the complainant and the teacher, the building principal shall attempt to arrange a conference between all parties concerned in order to resolve the problem. If, however, either the complainant or teacher objects to a conference of all the parties, the principal shall discuss the matter with the involved parties separately. In any event, the teacher shall be notified of the complaint.
 - 3. No disciplinary action shall be taken upon any complaint directed toward a teacher, without just cause, nor shall any notice thereof be included in said teacher's personnel file or evaluation unless the matter with the name of the complainant is reported in writing

to the teacher concerned within ten (10) school days of the complaint. The teacher will be provided sufficient time and opportunity to respond and/or to correct the situation prior to any further administrative action.

- B. In order for a complaint to be acted upon or to be included in said teacher's personnel file, it must be timely. That is, the complaint must be made within the school year in which the incident occurs or the summer of that school year. In the event that a complaint occurs during the last week of a school year or during the summer, a certified letter shall be sent to the teacher notifying him of the complaint, within 14 calendar days.
- C. If a complaint relates to an alleged sexual offense or a violation of law, the sections above shall not apply.
- D. If, as a result of a complaint, the complainant and/or the student suffers an identifiable reprisal from the teacher, the teacher shall be subject to disciplinary action. If the teacher suffers a reprisal from the complainant and/or student, the teacher will report, in writing, the circumstances of the situation to the building principal and request his/her intervention, assistance, or record of it.

ARTICLE 17 DISCIPLINE, DISCHARGE AND DEMOTION

- A. Discharge, demotion or other involuntary change in the employment status of a teacher shall be for just cause.
- B. The Association may support a teacher seeking a remedy under either the Tenure procedure, if applicable, or through mediation; however, should the teacher elect to pursue the Tenure procedure, such election will bar any further or subsequent proceedings under the grievance/mediation provisions of this agreement.

ARTICLE 18 DURATION OF AGREEMENT

Upon request of either party, on or aft expires preceding the termination of commence. The parties shall initia days after receipt of such request to fulfilling the mutual obligation to successor Agreement. Neither part such negotiations prior to such requ	this Agreement, negotiations shall lly meet no later than thirty (30) by the other party, for the purpose negotiate in good faith regarding ty shall be obligated to engage in
This Agreement shall be effect ratification by a majority of the Board of the Association. This Agreement change, unless there is a mutual agassociation set forth in writing and ratification and amajority of the membership of Agreement, August 31, 2027.	d and a majority of the membership s shall continue in effect without greement between the Board and the ified by a majority of the Board and
By White CAP LCS Superintendent (a:3.24	By Moh Me LEA President
Date	Date

SCHEDULE A

- A. In order to qualify The BA+25 and MA salary schedule, all additional credits must be earned in Education or related fields at an accredited institution after the BA/BS is granted.
- B. Step increments become effective the 1st work day of each school year. Educational column changes shall occur at the beginning of the school year upon proof of completion of credits needed for that column.
- C. If hired mid year, at the start of the next school year, the member will be moved to the next step on the salary schedule.
- D. All salaried personnel will be paid every other Friday. At the beginning of the school year, each teacher shall have the option of receiving the normal teaching compensation in twenty-one (21) or in twenty-six (26) equal payments. Salary payments shall begin with the first pay day in the school year.
 - The first pay period in the school year shall not occur prior to the Friday of the week of Labor Day. It may be necessary to increase the number of pay days from time to time in an effort to continue to receive pay on an every-other-Friday routine.
- E. Written individual contracts will be provided to the member by September 15 of the current school year and will include the following; date of hire, step, salary longevity if applicable and number of working days.

SCHEDULE A - Appendix A - Salary Schedule

Salary Schedule:

- o Year 1 5% increase
- Year 2 .5% increase
- o Year 3 .5% increase
 - In years 2 & 3:
 - Additional increase of .5% for every 10 students over 245.

• Salary Schedule:

 Changed numbering of steps so that the step equals the number of years of service to the district. This cleans it up for contracts.

2024-2025 LEA SALARY SCHEDULE

STEP	BA (24-25)	BA+25 (24-25)	MA (24-25)	MA+15 (24-25)	MA+30 (24-25)
1	\$35,586.30	\$35,794.87	\$38,149.93	\$39,424.56	\$40,893.45
2	\$37,859.55	\$38,131.12	\$40,423.18	\$41,697.81	\$43,166.70
3	\$40,132.80	\$40,467.37	\$42,696.43	\$43,971.06	\$45,439.95
4	\$42,406.05	\$42,803.62	\$44,969.68	\$46,244.31	\$47,713.20
5	\$44,679.30	\$45,139.87	\$47,242.93	\$48,517.56	\$49,986.45
6	\$46,952.55	\$47,476.12	\$49,516.18	\$50,790.81	\$52,259.70
7	\$49,225.80	\$49,812.37	\$51,789.43	\$53,064.06	\$54,532.95
8	\$51,499.05	\$52,148.62	\$54,062.68	\$55,337.31	\$56,806.20
9	\$53,782.80	\$54,484.87	\$56,335.93	\$57,610.56	\$59,079.45
10	\$56,045.55	\$56,821.12	\$58,609.18	\$59,883.81	\$61,352.70
11	\$58,318.80	\$59,157.37	\$60,882.43	\$62,157.06	\$63,625.95
12	\$60,592.05	\$61,493.62	\$63,155.68	\$64,430.31	\$65,899.20

2024-2025 LONGEVITY SCHEDULE

	YEARS	BA (24-25)	BA+25 (24-25)	MA (24-25)	MA+15 (24-25)	MA+30 (24-25)
3%	Yrs. 13 - L1	\$1,817.76	\$1,844.81	\$1,894.67	\$1,932.91	\$1,976.98
4%	Yrs. 14-15 - L2	\$2,423.68	\$2,459.74	\$2,526.23	\$2,577.21	\$2,635.97
5 %	Yrs. 16-17 - L3	\$3,029.60	\$3,074.68	\$3,157.78	\$3,221.52	\$3,294.96
6 %	Yrs. 18-19 - L4	\$3,635.52	\$3,689.62	\$3,789.34	\$3,865.82	\$3,953.95
7 %	Yrs. 20-21 -L5	\$4,241.44	\$4,304.55	\$4,420.90	\$4,510.12	\$4,612.95
8%	Yrs. 22 - L6	\$4,847.36	\$4,919.49	\$5,052.45	\$5,154.42	\$5,271.94
9 %	Yrs. 23-24 - L7	\$5,453.28	\$5,534.43	\$5,684.01	\$5,798.73	\$5,930.93
10%	Yrs. 25-26 - L8	\$6,059.20	\$6,149.36	\$6,315.57	\$6,443.03	\$6,589.92
10.5%	Yrs. 27-28 - L9	\$6,362.16	\$6,456.83	\$6,631.35	\$6,765.18	\$6,919.42
11 %	Yrs. 29-30 - L10	\$6,665.13	\$6,764.30	\$6,947.13	\$7,087.33	\$7,248.91

Litchfield Education Association MEA/NEA September 1, 2024-August 31, 2027

2024-2025 LONGEVITY SCHEDULE

	YEARS	BA (24-25)	BA+25 (24-25)	MA (24-25)	MA+15 (24-25)	MA+30 (24-25)
3%	Yrs. 13 - L1	\$62,409.81	\$63,338.43	\$65,050.35	\$66,363.22	\$67,876.17
4 %	Yrs. 14-15 - L2	\$63,015.73	\$63,953.36	\$65,681.91	\$67,007.52	\$68,535.16
5 %	Yrs. 16-17 - L3	\$63,621.65	\$64,568.30	\$66,313.47	\$67,651.83	\$69,194.16
6 %	Yrs. 18-19 - L4	\$64,227.57	\$65,183.23	\$66,945.02	\$68,296.13	\$69,853.15
7 %	Yrs. 20-21 -L5	\$64,833.49	\$65,798.17	\$67,576.58	\$68,940.43	\$70,512.14
8%	Yrs. 22 - L6	\$65,439.41	\$66,413.11	\$68,208.14	\$69,584.73	\$71,171.12
9 %	Yrs. 23-24 - L7	\$66,045.33	\$67,028.05	\$68,839.70	\$70,229.04	\$71,830.12
10 %	Yrs. 25-26 - L8	\$66,651.25	\$67,642.98	\$69,471.25	\$70,876.34	\$72,489.12
10.5%	Yrs. 27-28 - L9	\$66,954.21	\$67,950.45	\$69,787.03	\$71,195.49	\$72,818.61
11 %	Yrs. 29-30 - L10	\$67,257.17	\$68,257.92	\$70,102.81	\$71,517.64	\$73,148.11

2025-2026 LEA SALARY SCHEDULE

STEP	BA (25-26)	BA+25 (25-26)	MA (25-26)	MA+15 (25-26)	MA+30 (25-26)
1	\$35,764.23	\$35,973.84	\$38,340.68	\$39,621.68	\$41,097.92
2	\$38,048.85	\$38,321.78	\$40,625.30	\$41,906.30	\$43,382.53
3	\$40,333.46	\$40,669.71	\$42,909.91	\$44,190.92	\$45,667.15
4	\$42,618.08	\$43,017.64	\$45,194.53	\$46,475.53	\$47,951.77
5	\$44,902.70	\$45,365.57	\$47,479.14	\$48,760.15	\$50,236.38
6	\$47,187.31	\$47,713.50	\$49,763.76	\$51,044.74	\$52,521.00
7	\$49,471.93	\$50,061.43	\$52,048.38	\$53,329.38	\$54,805.61
8	\$51,756.55	\$52,409.36	\$54,332.99	\$55,614.00	\$57,090.23
9	\$54,041.16	\$54,757.26	\$56,617.61	\$57,898.61	\$59,374.85
10	\$56,325.78	\$57,105.23	\$58,902.23	\$60,183.23	\$61,659.46
11	\$58,610.39	\$59,453.16	\$61,186.84	\$62,467.85	\$63,944.08
12	\$60,895.01	\$61,801.09	\$63,471.46	\$64,752.46	\$66,228.70

2025-2026 LONGEVITY SCHEDULE

	YEARS	BA (25-26)	BA+25 (25-26)	MA (25-26)	MA+15 (25-26)	MA+30 (25-26)
3 %	Yrs. 13 - L1	\$1,827.90	\$1,854.03	\$1,904.13	\$1,942.57	\$1,986.86
4 %	Yrs. 14-15 - L2	\$2,435.80	\$2,472.04	\$2,538.86	\$2,590.10	\$2,649.15
5 %	Yrs. 16-17 - L3	\$3,044.74	\$3,090.05	\$3,173.57	\$3,237.63	\$3,311.43
6 %	Yrs. 18-19 - L4	\$3,653.70	\$3,708.07	\$3,808.30	\$3,885.15	\$3,973.72
7 %	Yrs. 20-21 -L5	\$4,262.65	\$4,277.32	\$4,443.00	\$4,532.67	\$4,636.01
8%	Yrs. 22 - L6	\$4,871.60	\$4,944.09	\$5,077.71	\$5,180.19	\$5,298.30
9 %	Yrs. 23-24 - L7	\$5,480.55	\$5,562.10	\$5,712.43	\$5,827.72	\$5,960.58
10 %	Yrs. 25-26 - L8	\$6,089.50	\$6,180.11	\$6,347.15	\$6,475.25	\$6,622.87
10.5%	Yrs. 27-28 - L9	\$6,393.70	\$6,489.11	\$6,664.51	\$6,799.01	\$6,954.02
11 %	Yrs. 29-30 -					
L10		\$6,698.46	\$6,798.12	\$6,981.87	\$7,122.77	\$7,285.15

2025-2026 LONGEVITY SCHEDULE

	YEARS	BA (25-26)	BA+25 (25-26)	MA (25-26)	MA+15 (25-26)	MA+30 (25-26)
3%	Yrs. 13 - L1	\$62,722.91	\$63,655.12	\$65,375.59	\$66,695.03	\$68,215.56
4 %	Yrs. 14-15 - L2	\$63,330.81	\$64,273.13	\$66,010.32	\$67,342.56	\$68,877.85
5 %	Yrs. 16-17 - L3	\$63,939.75	\$64,891.14	\$66,645.03	\$67,990.09	\$69,540.13
6%	Yrs. 18-19 - L4	\$64,548.71	\$65,509.16	\$67,279.76	\$68,637.61	\$70,202.42
7 %	Yrs. 20-21 -L5	\$65,157.66	\$66,078.41	\$67,914.46	\$69,285.13	\$70,864.71
8%	Yrs. 22 - L6	\$65,766.61	\$66,745.18	\$68,549.17	\$69,932.65	\$71,527.00
9 %	Yrs. 23-24 - L7	\$66,375.56	\$67,363.19	\$69,183.89	\$70,580.18	\$72,189.28
10 %	Yrs. 25-26 - L8	\$66,984.51	\$67,981.20	\$69,818.61	\$71,227.71	\$72,851.57
10.5%	Yrs. 27-28 - L9	\$67,288.71	\$68,290.20	\$70,135.97	\$71,551.47	\$73,182.72
11 %	Yrs. 29-30 -					
L10		\$67,593.47	\$68,599.21	\$70,453.33	\$71,875.23	\$73,513.85

Litchfield Education Association MEA/NEA September 1, 2024-August 31, 2027

2026-2027 LEA SALARY SCHEDULE

STEP	BA (26-27)	BA+25 (26-27)	MA (26-27)	MA+15 (26-27)	MA+30 (26-27)
1	\$35,943.05	\$36,153.71	\$38,532.38	\$39,819.79	\$41,303.41
2	\$38,239.10	\$38,513.39	\$40,828.43	\$42,115.83	\$43,599.44
3	\$40,535.13	\$40,873.09	\$43,124.46	\$44,411.87	\$45,895.48
4	\$42,831.17	\$43,232.73	\$45,420.50	\$46,707.91	\$48,191.53
5	\$45,137.21	\$45,592.40	\$47,716.54	\$49,003.95	\$50,487.56
6	\$47,423.25	\$47,952.07	\$50,012.58	\$51,299.96	\$52,783.61
7	\$49,719.29	\$50,311.74	\$52,308.62	\$53,596.03	\$55,079.64
8	\$52,015.33	\$52,671.41	\$54,604.66	\$55,892.07	\$57,375.68
9	\$54,311.37	\$55,031.05	\$56,900.70	\$58,188.10	\$59,671.72
10	\$56,607.41	\$57,390.76	\$59,196.74	\$60,484.15	\$61,967.76
11	\$58,903.44	\$59,750.43	\$61,492.77	\$62,780.19	\$64,263.80
12	\$61,199.49	\$62,110.10	\$63,788.82	\$65,076.22	\$66,559.84

2026-2027 LONGEVITY SCHEDULE

	YEARS	BA (26-27)	BA+25 (26-27)	MA (26-27)	MA+15 (26-27)	MA+30 (26-27)
3%	Yrs. 13 - L1	\$1,837.04	\$1,863.30	\$1,914.66	\$1,952.28	\$1,996.79
4%	Yrs. 14-15 - L2	\$2,447.98	\$2,484.40	\$2,551.55	\$2,603.05	\$2,662.40
5 %	Yrs. 16-17 - L3	\$3,059.96	\$3,105.51	\$3,189.44	\$3,253.82	\$3,327.99
6 %	Yrs. 18-19 - L4	\$3,671.98	\$3,726.61	\$3,827.34	\$3,904.58	\$3,993.59
7 %	Yrs. 20-21 -L5	\$4,283.96	\$4,298.71	\$4,465.22	\$4,555.33	\$4,659.19
8%	Yrs. 22 - L6	\$4,895.96	\$4,968.81	\$5,103.10	\$5,206.09	\$5,324.79
9 %	Yrs. 23-24 - L7	\$5,507.95	\$5,589.91	\$5,740.99	\$5,856.86	\$5,990.38
10 %	Yrs. 25-26 - L8	\$6,119.95	\$6,211.01	\$6,378.89	\$6,507.63	\$6,655.98
10.5%	Yrs. 27-28 - L9	\$6,425.67	\$6,521.56	\$6,697.83	\$6,833.01	\$6,988.79
11 %	Yrs. 29-30 - L10	\$6,731.95	\$6,832.11	\$7,016.78	\$7,158.38	\$7,321.58

2026-2027 LONGEVITY SCHEDULE

	YEARS	BA (26-27)	BA+25 (26-27)	MA (26-27)	MA+15 (26-27)	MA+30 (26-27)
3 %	Yrs. 13 - L1	\$63,036.53	\$63,973.40	\$65,703.48	\$67,028.50	\$68,556.63
4 %	Yrs. 14-15 - L2	\$63,647.47	\$64,594.50	\$66,340.37	\$67,679.27	\$69,222.24
5 %	Yrs. 16-17 - L3	\$64,259.45	\$65,215.61	\$66,978.26	\$68,330.40	\$69,887.83
6 %	Yrs. 18-19 - L4	\$64,871.47	\$65,836.71	\$67,616.16	\$68,980.80	\$70,553.43
7 %	Yrs. 20-21 -L5	\$65,483.45	\$66,378.91	\$68,254.04	\$69,631.55	\$71,219.03
8 %	Yrs. 22 - L6	\$66,095.45	\$67,078.91	\$68,891.92	\$70,282.31	\$71,884.63
9%	Yrs. 23-24 - L7	\$66,707.44	\$67,700.01	\$69,529.81	\$70,933.08	\$72,550.22
10 %	Yrs. 25-26 - L8	\$67,319.44	\$68,321.11	\$70,167.71	\$71,583.85	\$73,215.82
10.5%	Yrs. 27-28 - L9	\$67,625.16	\$68,631.66	\$70,486.65	\$71,909.23	\$73,548.63
11 %	Yrs. 29-30 - L10	\$67,931.44	\$68,942.21	\$70,805.60	\$72,234.60	\$73,881.42

Litchfield Education Association MEA/NEA September 1, 2024-August 31, 2027

SCHEDULE B - Appendix B - Extra duty Assignments

SCHEDULE B - EXTRA DUTY ASSIGNMENTS

All positions shall be first filled by members of LEA who meet qualifications. If there are no Association member candidates for a posted Schedule B position, the District may negotiate separate work agreements including wage or salary agreements for any person not hired for any Schedule B position who is not a member of the Teacher's Bargaining Unit. In no case shall the negotiated agreement exceed the Schedule B salary for the position indicated. This shall be paid based upon the number of years experience within the Schedule B position in the BA Salary Schedule up to Step 5 on the Salary Schedule

Sports

September 1, 2024-August 31, 2027

Varsity Football	10%
Assistant Varsity Football (2)	\$1,000
Jr. High Football	4%
Varsity Volleyball	10%
JV Volleyball	7%
Jr. High Volleyball	4%
Cross Country (6-12)	5%
Varsity Basketball	11%
Varsity Basketball Assistant (1)	\$1,000
JV Basketball	8%
7th Grade Basketball	4%
8th Grade Basketball	4%
Cheerleading Fall	5%
Cheerleading Winter	5%
Varsity Baseball	9%
Assistant Varsity Baseball (2)	\$1,000
JV Baseball	3.5%
Varsity Softball	9%
JV Softball	3.5%
Varsity Track Assistant Track (1) Jr. High Track Litchfield Education Association MEA/NEA	9% \$1,000 4%

Other Services

*Payment for supervision of the activities listed below are based on Step 1 of the BA Salary Schedule.

Athletic Director \$8,000 Assistant AD \$4,000

*Sum of positions not to exceed \$12,000. Amount will be divided based on delineation of duties as agreed upon by the LEA.

Kindergarten Extra Duties

Kindergarten Meet and Greet (Before the start of school)

Kindergarten Round Up (Spring)

Sixth Grade Camp \$300/each, up to two (2)

Teachers

\$200

Fair Booth Coordinator \$50 Up to four (4) teachers,

half day release time or \$50 if Work is done after school hrs

Career Day Coordinator \$50

March Is Reading Month Coordinator \$100

Senior Class Advisor \$750
Junior Class Advisor \$675
Other HS/MS Class Advisors \$335
National Honor Society \$335
Data Coach \$1,700

504 Coordinator \$100 per student up to

\$2,000

Assessment Coordinator \$2,000

School Improvement Team \$200

(Up to three positions, Elementary, Middle School, High School. Each position will be paid equally.)

Student Council Advisor \$670

EMC Coordinator \$3,000

*If built into the scheduled hours, then paid at the contractual hourly rate plus mileage.

Special Education Director \$4,000

* If built into the schedule, this does not apply.

Schedule B assignments are annual appointments and the Board is authorized to terminate any employee from these position for any reason at any time.

Schedule B assignments will receive full compensation unless there are cancellations due to a governments shutdown or local health emergency. For these athletic positions, coaches will be compensated if the season is canceled prior to the beginning of the season due to a pandemic, government shutdown, or local health emergency, provided the coach presents information of significant planning or startup activities in preparation for the season. The percentage of compensation will be determined by the District, but the Board will consult with the Association.

A position who is not a member of the Teacher's Bargaining Unit. In no case shall the negotiated agreement exceed the Schedule B salary for the position indicated. This shall be paid based upon the number of years of experience within the Schedule B position.

- A. Supplementary contracts shall be offered on a provisional basis that the Board may void the contract at any time for the following reasons:
 - 1. Insufficient student interest in that activity.
 - 2. Lack of grant funds.
 - 3. Position is abolished. If the position is abolished after the teacher has been on the job, the teacher will be paid on a prorated basis for the time worked.
 - 4. A supplementary contract shall be voided by a teacher giving ten (10) school days notice of this intent, such notice shall be given at least twenty (20) days prior to the beginning of the season. Teachers taking such action relinquish any rights to that position for the balance of the school year concerned.
- B. The Board of Education will pay for the above special services, when performed outside the regular school schedule, at the rates indicated above. The rates (percentage) will be applied to the BA/BS current year schedule at the experience level of the teacher in that activity.

- 1. A teacher who substitutes for another teacher during their conference period in the regular school day, supervises the elementary playground during the noon hour, supervises the entire high school lunch period shall be reimbursed at the rate of \$30.00 per hour. Others paid at this rate includes professional summer employees hired for At Risk, Summer School, bargaining unit members hired for Lead Teacher, and Curriculum Work.
- 2. In the event that a substitute teacher is not available and a class needs to be combined with another class due to this shortage, the teacher(s) affected will receive the equivalent of \$100. For example: if one teacher takes the entire class, they will receive the entire amount, if three teachers take the class, the amount will be divided equally.
- 3. If a teacher is assigned a virtual student, where they will be required to meet two-way communication requirements, the teacher will be paid \$30 per week that two-way contacts are required.
- 4. The parties agree that when members of the bargaining unit are to be compensated for extra duty work under a grant program or a program funded from an outside source, the compensation for extra duty work shall be the higher of the following:
 - a. The rate of compensation provided for in the grant or program, or a rate calculated by using the monies provided for in the grant divided by the amount of extra duty work.
 - b. The rate of compensation agreed to in B 3 above for such bargaining unit extra duty work.
- C. Any teacher employed by the Board at work related to the teacher's field exceeding the regular contractual period shall be reimbursed on a proportional basis according to the teacher's base salary.
- D. Teachers are encouraged to attend meetings that will increase their understanding and knowledge in their particular field of endeavor. Attendance at such meetings will be with the approval of the Superintendent of Schools. When necessary, a substitute teacher will be provided to enable a teacher to attend such a meeting, but normally attendance will be restricted to one such meeting per school year.

- E. Teachers, who travel on school business in their personal conveyance, or commercial carrier, shall be reimbursed at the IRS rate per mile, provided such travel has been approved by the Superintendent of Schools. Reimbursement for travel shall at no time exceed the cost of travel. Institutes which teachers are expected to attend and meetings of professional association (M.E.A.) groups are not eligible for reimbursement.
- F. When a teacher's attendance at a professional conference or workshop is at the request of the district, and if the teacher accepts, the teacher shall be reimbursed for his/her registration fees, housing, meals, and travel costs. When a teacher requests to attend a conference or workshop, and, if approved, the aforementioned costs may be paid by the district.
- G. The counselor shall work the five (5) consecutive work days prior to teachers reporting at the beginning of the school year and three (3) work days after immediately following the last teacher day at the end of the school year and is to be compensated per contract monetarily (per diem).
 - 1. In the event the counselor is less than full time, the time required and compensation for work referenced in the above paragraph shall be prorated.
 - 2. In the event the services of the counselor are needed beyond the five (5) days before and three (3) days after referenced above, it will be determined by mutual consent of the counselor and the immediate supervisor and shall be paid at the member's salary. The counselor may be required to fill out a time sheet reflecting the agreed upon amount of time to be worked.
 - 3. Should the counselor be needed outside the parameters set forth in the paragraphs above, she/he will be approached by the administration at least two (2) weeks prior to the identified need to a workout a mutually agreed upon schedule. The counselor shall be compensated for any additional work in the same fashion as outlined in the preceding paragraphs.

APPENDIX C GRIEVANCE REPORT FORM				
Grievance #School District Submit to Principal in Duplicate		Distribution of Form: 1. Superintendent 2. Principal 3. Association 4. Teacher		
Building Assignment Name of Griev	v <u>ant</u>	Date Filed		
	STEP 1			
A. Date Cause of Grievance Occurred:_				
B. 1. State of Grievance:(including Arti	icles & Sections			
violated)				
2. Relief Sought:				
	Signature	Date		

C. I	Disposition of Principal:					
		Signature of Principal	Date			
		Signature of Principal	Date			
D 1	Disposition of Griggent and/or Associ	ation				
D.]	Disposition of Grievant and/or Associ	auon				
		Signature	Date			
	ditional space is needed in reporting S	ection				
Б 01	Step I, Attach an additional sheet.					
		STEP II				
A.	Date Received by Superintendent of	or Designee:				
В.	Disposition of Superintendent or D					
Б.	Disposition of superintendent of D	esignee				
		Signature	Date			
		Signature	Daic			

C.	Position of Grievant and/or Associa	tion	
		Signature	Data
		Signature	Date
		STEP III	
A.	Date Submitted to Board of Educati	ion:	
B.	Disposition of Board of Education:		
		Signature of Board of Education	Date
C.	Disposition of Grievant and/or Asso	ociation	
		Signature	Date
		STEP IV	
A.	Date Submitted to Arbitration		
B.	Disposition and Award of Arbitrato	r	
		Signature	Date
	e: All provisions of Article XI of the A tly observed in the settlement of grieva		, will be
	field Education Association MEA/NEA mber 1, 2024-August 31, 2027		

APPENDIX D TEACHER EVALUATION, PLACEMENT, LEAVE/LAYOFF, TEACHER OF RECORD

Decisions about placement, layoff/recall, and evaluation of a 'teacher' under Revised Code Section 1249, or who is assigned to students in any grade K to 12 as a teacher of record (Classroom Teacher) will be made as stated below.

- A. Placement of Classroom Teacher. The Superintendent or designee decides placement decisions, when a vacancy exists, and when a posting is made. Consistent with Revised School Code Section 1248, classroom teacher placement decision will be made by the Superintendent or designee in their discretion based on the following clear and transparent factors:
 - 1. Staffing the curriculum with the most effective and qualified Teachers to instruct the application courses, grades, and school schedule.
 - 2. Appropriate certification, approval, or authorization for all aspects of the assignment. The certification, approval, or authorization, as applicable, will be determined by the Revised School Code, MDE's Teacher Certification Code, MDE's Rules for Special Education Programs and Services, and other applicable statutes and regulations.
 - 3. Classroom Teacher placement decisions must be made based on effectiveness criteria established in Revised School Code Section 1249.
 - 4. A vacancy shall be defined as an unassigned, open position, or a newly created position which the District intends to fill. Vacancies shall be posted at least five (5) business days prior to being filled.
 - 5. Classroom Teachers must be fully qualified for all aspects of their assignments, as determined by the Board, based on documentation on file with the Superintendent's office, including:
 - a. Compliance with applicable state or federal regulatory standards, including standards established as a condition to receipt of foundation, grant, or categorical funding;

- b. Credentials needed for District, school, or program accreditation;
- c. District-provided professional development, training, and academic preparation for an instructional assignment that is anticipated to contribute to the teacher's effectiveness in that assignment and is integrated into instruction;
- d. Relevant special training, other than professional development or continuing education as required by state or federal law, and integration of that training into instruction in a meaningful way;
- e. Disciplinary record, if any;
- f. Length of service in a grade level(s) or subject area(s);
- g. Recency of relevant and comparable teaching assignments;
- h. Previous effectiveness ratings;
- i. Punctuality or and habitual use of unpaid days not protected by FMLA, ADA, or other State or Federal law.
- j. Positive or negative rapport with colleagues, parents, and students;
- k. Ability to withstand the strain of teaching; as defined by law.
- 1. Compliance with state and federal law.
- m. Other non-arbitrary or capricious reasons:
- 6. Length of service may be considered as a tiebreaker if a Classroom Teacher placement decision involves 2 or more teachers and all other factors distinguishing those teachers from each other are equal.
- 7. If a teacher petitions for nullification of the teaching certificate or any endorsement, the teacher must promptly provide written notice of that petition to the Superintendent's office.

B. <u>Layoff/Recall of Classroom Teachers:</u>

- 1. Acting within the approved budget, the Superintendent is responsible for establishing the number and nature of teaching assignments to implement the approved curriculum. If the Superintendent determines that insufficient funds are budgeted for the existing Classroom Teaching staff or that a reduction in Classroom Teaching staff is necessary due to program, curricular, or other operational considerations, the Superintendent will recommend to the Board the Classroom Teaching positions to be reduced. Prior to the issuance of layoff notices, the LEA will be given an opportunity to make specific recommendations regarding the particular implementation of the layoff procedures planned by the District.
- 2. Reduction in work force and recall decisions must be made based on a classroom teacher effectiveness criterion established in Revised School Code Section 1249 and this Appendix.
- 3. Classroom Teachers must be fully qualified for all aspects of their assignments, as determined by the Board, based on documentation on file with the Superintendent's office, including:
 - a. Compliance with applicable state or federal regulatory standards, including standards established as a condition to receipt of foundation, grant, or categorical funding;
 - b. Credentials needed for District, school, or program accreditation;
 - c. District-provided professional development, training, and academic preparation for an instructional assignment that is anticipated to contribute to the Classroom Teacher's effectiveness in that assignment and is integrated into instruction;
 - d. Relevant special training, other than professional development or continuing education as required by state or federal law, and integration of that training into instruction in a meaningful way;
 - e. Disciplinary record, if any;
 - f. Length of service in a grade level(s) or subject area(s);

- g. Recency of relevant and comparable teaching assignments;
- h. Previous effectiveness rating;
 - i. Punctuality or and habitual use of unpaid days not protected by FMLA, ADA, or other State or Federal law.
 - ii. Positive or negative rapport with colleagues, parents, and students;
 - iii. Ability to withstand the strain of teaching; as defined by law.
 - iv. Compliance with state and federal law.
 - v. Other non-arbitrary or capricious reasons:
- 4. Classroom Teachers must provide the District with current information and documentation supporting the Classroom Teacher's certification and qualifications.
 - a. Reduction and recall decisions will be based on the classroom teacher's certification and qualifications in the District's records at the time of the decision.
 - b. A laid off classroom teacher must maintain current contact information (address, phone, and email address) with the Superintendent's office.
 - c. Failure to maintain current contact information may negatively affect the teacher's recall.
- 5. Classroom Teacher reductions and recalls are by formal Board action.
- 6. The Superintendent or designee will provide written notice of reduction in force or recall decisions to each affected Classroom Teacher and Association.
- 7. Classroom Teacher Recall Process
 - a. A Classroom Teacher is eligible for recall under this Appendix for 18 months from the date the District implemented the reduction in force.

- b. The Superintendent will first identify the academic level(s) or department(s) where a teaching vacancy exists.
- c. Before or in lieu of initiating the recall of a laid-off Classroom Teacher, the Superintendent may reassign teachers to fill vacancies in accordance with this Appendix.
- d. After or in lieu of any reassignment of existing teaching staff, the Superintendent may take either of the following actions to fill a vacancy:
- e. Recall the laid-off Classroom Teacher who is certified and qualified for the vacancy, provided the Classroom Teacher was related at least effective. If more than 1 laid-off classroom teacher is certified and qualified for recall to a vacant teaching assignment, the Superintendent or designee will fill the vacancy consistent with this Appendix; or
- f. Post the vacancy and consider all applicants if the Superintendent determines that the District's educational interests would be served and no Classroom Teacher on layoff meets the certification and qualification requirements of the position.
- g. The superintendent or designee will provide written notice of the Board's recall decision to any recall Classroom Teachers and will establish the time within which a Classroom Teacher must accept recall to preserve the Classroom Teacher's employment rights.
- h. A laid-off classroom teacher who is recalled and fails to accept recall by the time designated in the recall notice, or who does not report for work by the deadline specified in the recall notice after filing a written acceptance of recall with the Superintendent, will forfeit all rights to recall and continued employment unless the Superintendent, in the Superintendent's sole discretion, has extended the time limit in writing.

C. <u>Evaluation of Classroom Teachers:</u>

- 1. A classroom Teacher will be evaluated pursuant to the [5D (+)] performance evaluation system attached to this Appendix. The District will measure student growth for 20% of the evaluation as agreed upon between district administration and LEA (enter your own district information here).
- 2. A Probationary Classroom Teacher cannot challenge any aspect of the negotiated evaluation process, including observations, the IDP, the mid-year performance review or their assigned rating.
- 3. Grievance Procedure. An alleged violation of this Appendix is not subject to arbitration in the grievance process. An Arbitrator, however, has jurisdiction to consider a grievance filed under the grievance procedure by a tenured Classroom Teacher with two (2) consecutive ratings of "needing support."